2020 to 2023

3325

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

CITY OF NEWPORT, OREGON



AND

NEWPORT PROFESSIONAL FIRE FIGHTERS

LOCAL 4619



Table of Contents

PREAMBLE
ARTICLE 1 – RECOGNITION
Represented Positions
1.1 Bargaining Unit Work
1.2 Temporary Employees
ARTICLE 2 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS
2.1 Management Rights
2.2 Overpayment
2.3 Underpayment
ARTICLE 3 – GENERAL PROVISIONS
3.1 Seniority7
3.2 Probationary Period7
3.3 Probation Completion
3.4 Dues Check Off
3.5 Union Dues
3.6 Promotions
3.7 Safety
3.8 Trade Time
3.9 Schedule Seniority
3.10 Calculation of Time
ARTICLE 4 – PERSONNEL RECORDS
4.1 Files9
4.2 Signature Requirement9
4.3 File Purging
ARTICLE 5 –UNION BUSINESS
5.1 Meetings9
5.2 Negotiating and Grievances
5.3 New Hires
5.4 Bulletin Boards
5.5 Hold Harmless
5.6 File Cabinet
5.7 Union Leave
ARTICLE 6- HOURS OF WORK
6.1 Hours of Work Defined

× 2

6.2 Work Schedule	10
6.3 Modification of Normal Work Schedule	
6.4 Overtime	11
6.5 Call Out Policy	11
6.6 Time Sheets	11
6.7 Staff Meetings	12
6.8 Sick Leave and Vacation Coverage	12
6.9 Relief Staffing	12
6.10 Forced Callback	12
ARTICLE 7 – DISCIPLINE	12
7.1 Standard	12
7.2 Probationary Employee	12
7.3 Imposition	13
7.4 Due Process	13
ARTICLE 8 – GRIEVANCE	13
8.1 Procedure	
8.2 Arbitration	14
8.3 Time Limits	14
8.4 Termination of Grievance	14
ARTICLE 9 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE	15
9.1 Without Pay	15
9.2 Bereavement Leave	15
ARTICLE 10 – SICK LEAVE	15
10.1 Accrual	
10.2 Utilization	
10.3 Integration with Worker's Compensation	
ARTICLE 11 - HOLIDAY and VACATION LEAVE	16
11.1 Holiday Leave	
11.2 Vacation Leave	
11.3 Maximum Accrual	17
11.4 Scheduling Vacation Time Off	17
11.5 Comp. Time	
ARTICLE 12 – INSURANCE	
12.1 Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance	18
12.2 Life Insurance	

n k

12.3 Income Protection	19
12.4 Health Coverage	19
ARTICLE 13 - COMPENSATION	19
13.1 Public Employees' Retirement System	19
13.2 Unused Sick Leave	19
13.3 Salary Schedule/Wages	19
13.4 Movement on the Schedule	19
13.5 Incentive Pay	19
13.6 Travel Pay	20
13.7 Acting in Capacity (AIC) Pay	20
13.8 State Emergency Mobilization	21
ARTICLE 14 – SAVINGS CLAUSE	21
14.1 Savings Clause	21
ARTICLE 15 – LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	21
ARTICLE 16 - UNIFORMS	21
16.1 Uniform Replacement	21
16.2 Protective Equipment	21
16.3 Uniform Standards	
16.4 Uniform Items and Quantity	
ARTICLE 17 – PHYSICAL FITNESS AND EXERCISE	
17.1 Workout/Exercise Time	
ARTICLE 18 – MISCELLANEOUS	
18.1 Performance Appraisal	
18.2 Outside Employment	22
18.3 Cell Phones	22
18.4 Leave Donation	23
18.5 Liability Insurance	23
18.6 SOPs & SOGs	23
18.7 Residency	23
18.8 Misc. Payroll Deductions	23
ARTICLE 19 – TERM OF AGREEMENT	24
19.1 Term	24
EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT	24
Appendix A: Seniority Chart	24
Appendix B: Wage Scale	25

1 (r 1 (r)

PREAMBLE

x 3

This Agreement, entered into by the City of Newport, Oregon, hereinafter called the "City," and the Newport Professional Fire Fighters, Local 4619, hereinafter called the "Union", as its purpose, sets forth the full and complete agreement between the City and the Union.

In all instances, this contract between the City and the Union shall take precedence over conflicting rules and regulations. Refer to the Newport City Employee Handbook for any rules or regulations not addressed in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 1 – RECOGNITION

Represented Positions

The bargaining unit shall consist of all full-time, paid Fire Department employees working for the City of Newport except for temporary, seasonal, supervisory, clerical, and confidential employees. The Union is recognized as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all employees in the bargaining unit as provided in the Public Employee Collective Bargaining Act (PECBA). The president of the Union or his/her designee is recognized as the sole and exclusive agent for the Union. The City Manager or his/her designee is recognized as the sole and exclusive agent for the City of Newport. The Union President and the City Manager, or their designees are authorized signatures for any and all changes, additions or deletions to any contract article or partial article.

In the event that the City intends to create a new job classification, which is properly within the bargaining unit, it shall provide a copy of the job description to the Union and establish a temporary salary rate. The Agreement will then be subject to reopening to include only such new classification under the scope of this Agreement. The City shall not be precluded from filling the position during the period of negotiations.

1.1 Bargaining Unit Work

At least two (2) bargaining unit personnel will be on duty. This does not limit the City from having more personnel (for example, volunteers or temporary employees) on duty in addition to the minimum number of bargaining unit personnel and is addressed below, under section 2.1 Management Rights.

An exception to the minimum of at least two bargaining unit personnel on duty is allowed in the event a bargaining unit personnel scheduled to work is on leave under the FMLA/OFLA or an on the job injury. In the event that a bargaining unit employee covered under this agreement is on leave under the FMLA/OFLA or an on the job injury, that position may be covered by a qualified temporary employee. This will be on a case by case basis. This City will notify the Union in contingent on the bargaining unit member being allowed the FMLA/OFLA leave or if the employee is on leave for a City covered on the job injury.

1.2 Temporary Employees

Temporary employees will only be used to fill a bargaining unit position as an addition to the minimum staffing and only when a bargaining unit member is out on extended leaver longer than 90 days.

ARTICLE 2 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

2.1 Management Rights

Except as expressly modified or restricted by a specific provision of this Agreement, all charter, statutory and other managerial rights, prerogatives, and functions are retained and vested exclusively in the City, including, by way of description and not limitations, the rights, in accordance with its sole and exclusive judgment and discretion:

- A. to direct and supervise all operations and functions;
- B. to manage and direct the work force; including, by way of description and not limitation, the right to determine the methods, processes, locations and manner of performing work;
- C. to close or liquidate an office, branch, operation, department or facility or combination of facilities, or to relocate, reorganize or combine the work of divisions, offices, branches, operations or facilities for budgetary or other reasons;
- D. to hire, promote and retain employees;
- E. to determine schedules of work;
- F. to determine the need for a reduction or an increase in the work force;
- G. to establish, revise and implement standards for hiring, classification, promotion, quality of work, safety, materials, uniforms, appearance, methods, procedures, and equipment;
- H. to determine the need for additional education courses, training programs, on-the-job training, and cross training.
- I. to implement new and to revise or discard, wholly or in part, methods, procedures, materials, equipment, facilities and standards.
- J. to assign employees to duties for periods to be determined by the City.
- K. At no time will volunteers supervise or oversee any employees, except in emergency situations in the Incident Command System.

Utilization of any management rights not specifically limited by this Agreement shall be at the City's discretion and not subject to the grievance procedure or negotiation, unless the matter is a mandatory subject of bargaining as required by PECBA.

2.2 Overpayment

If the City overpays an employee for any reason or provides benefits for an employee that the employee was not entitled to the City may recover the amount of the overpayment or the cost of benefits that the employee was not eligible for by deducting the amount of overpayment or unearned benefits from the employees pay. The deductions shall not exceed 20% of the employee's base salary pay for any period. The City and the employee may agree to a repayment schedule. In the absence of a repayment schedule agreement, the City may deduct pay as provided for in this section.

2.3 Underpayment

If the City underpays an employee more then five (5) percent of their regular gross monthly salary for any reason, the employee shall be contacted and the error shall be corrected and

employee compensated no later than three (3) business days after the notification. If the underpayment is five (5) percent or less of their regular gross monthly salary then the underpayment will be paid on their next paycheck as long as the underpayment is brought to the attention of the City on or before the twenty-first (21) of the month. If the underpayment is brought to the attention of the City on the twenty-second (22) of the month, or after, the underpayment amount will be paid with the following month's paycheck.

ARTICLE 3 – GENERAL PROVISIONS

3.1 Seniority

. .

Seniority shall be defined as the total length of continuous employment within the bargaining unit of the City of Newport.

Seniority shall be terminated if an employee:

- a) Resigns;
- b) Is discharged for just cause;
- c) Is laid off and fails to respond to a written notice of recall;
- d) Is retired;
- e) Leave of absence, more than three hundred (300) calendar days without pay;
- f) Layoff of more than two (2) years.

If, for any reason, in the judgment of the city, there is a reduction in the bargaining unit workforce, employees with the least amount of bargaining unit seniority will be laid off first. The employee shall be notified in writing at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such layoff. Rehiring of employees laid off will be in reverse order of layoff. In the event of layoffs, employees will have the opportunity to "bump" down to the next lower level provided they are qualified for that position and have seniority over those at that lower level.

3.2 Probationary Period

Every employee hired into the bargaining unit shall serve a probationary period of twelve (12) months. Any interruption of service, except for incidental amounts of sick or injury leave shall not be counted as part of such period. The provisions of this Article do not preclude the Union or the employee from using the grievance procedure regarding matters other than job rights. A probationary employee may be disciplined or discharged without recourse to the grievance procedure for failure to perform to departmental standards.

3.3 Probation Completion

During the twelve (12) month probation period the employee will be evaluated quarterly, and at the end of the probation, the employee's status will be determined. If the employee is not evaluated by the twelve (12) month time period, the employee will automatically be removed from probation and assume regular full time status. If the employee receives an unfavorable review during the probationary period, or has not yet completed the prescribed requirements for a promotion, the employees' probation may be extended at the discretion of the City.

3.4 Dues Check Off

Upon receipt of signed authorization by each member of the Union, the City agrees to deduct from each member's monthly paycheck the amount specified by the Union. The City agrees to

remit the aggregate of the deductions monthly to be deposited directly into the union checking account.

The performance of this service by the City is at no cost to the Union.

3.5 Union Dues

Employees that choose to join the Union shall have the Union dues deducted as defined in Article 3.4. Union Dues will be outlined in the By-Laws of IAFF Local 4619, Newport Professional Firefighters

3.6 Promotions

Employees of the City who were previously employed within the bargaining unit and were subsequently promoted to a higher paying position not within the bargaining unit may return to the bargaining unit only if there is an open position available. Employees returning to the bargaining unit shall start out at the bottom of the seniority list

Employees who are promoted from a position within the bargaining unit to a higher ranking position within the bargaining unit, and who do not successfully complete probation, will be returned to their previous position and retain their seniority.

3.7 Safety

The parties agree to maintain the Newport Fire Department Safety Committee and comply with OR-OSHA rules and regulations regarding safety committees.

3.8 Trade Time

A. Employees may trade time. Trade time will be considered time worked for FLSA purposes for the person receiving the trade, and not the employee actually working the trade day. The employee actually working the trade day is responsible for insuring they are present for the duty. Any utilization of sick or vacation leave will be charged to the employee expected to be working the trade day.

B. Employees working the trade day must be qualified to cover the shift; the employees involved in the trade shall provide notice to the Fire Chief or their designee, if requested.

3.9 Schedule Seniority

If a position/rank has different hourly schedules, members may choose by seniority what schedule they will be assigned to.

3.10 Calculation of Time

For the purposes of this Agreement, "day" meads calendar day unless otherwise specified. The time within an act is to be done shall be computed by excluding the first day and including the last day.

ARTICLE 4 – PERSONNEL RECORDS

4.1 Files

Employees may inspect the contents of their personnel file, except for confidential reports from previous employers, in the presence of an authorized City representative. Only one employment file will be kept on each employee. Those files will be stored in the Human Resources department at City Hall.

4.2 Signature Requirement

No information reflecting critically upon employees shall be placed in their personnel files until the employee has had an opportunity to sign the document. The employee's signature on the document will not be an affirmation of agreement with the contents of the document.

4.3 File Purging

Upon request of the employee, written warnings shall be removed from their personnel file after two (2) years, so long as no similar written warnings or discipline occur within that time period. Documented verbal warnings shall be removed from the personnel file after one (1) year.

ARTICLE 5 – UNION BUSINESS

5.1 Meetings

To the extent allowable by the operational requirements of the Department, Union officers participating in a grievance process and the grieved employee may be allowed time off from regular duties for the purpose of meeting with representatives of the City on grievance matters.

Also, at the discretion of the employer and consistent with law, on duty employees may attend Union meetings while on duty, as long as it does not interfere with department business and employees are immediately available for their duties if needed.

5.2 Negotiating and Grievances

The Union shall be allowed two (2) employees to attend scheduled contract negotiations while on duty. Employees selected shall suffer no loss of pay or other benefits as a result of their attendance at such meetings. The Union shall certify in writing the names of the employees that would attend such meetings upon request of the City.

5.3 New Hires

The City will notify the Union of all new hires within one (1) week after their having been employed, furnishing the Union with the new employee's name, mailing address and position for which he or she was hired.

5.4 Bulletin Boards

The City will allow the Union to maintain bulletin board space at a reasonable location approved by the Department to be used by the Union for the posting of notices and bulletins relating to the Union. All items so posted will bear the signature of an official of the Union.

5.5 Hold Harmless

Provided the City acts in compliance with the provisions of this Article, the Union will

indemnify, defend and hold the City harmless against any claims made and against any suit instituted against the City as a result of the City's enforcement of the above provisions or as a result of check off errors.

5.6 File Cabinet

The City will allow the Union to place, at its own cost, a file cabinet on City premises. Said cabinet is the property of the Union and shall be locked and accessible to the Union. The file cabinet will be standard size and be located in the copy room at the main fire station. The Union will hold the City harmless for any negligence, not on the part of the City, for damages or breaches of security to the file cabinet.

5.7 Union Leave

Members of the bargaining unit will be collectively allowed paid leave time for official Union business related to this agreement. Such leave shall be limited to a total of one hundred and twenty (120) hours annually for the unit. Union leave requests and approvals must be approved by Management and the Union and used for business that is related to the City of Newport Fire Department. The Union President or the Vice President must sign or initial such leave indicating it has been approved by the union as union leave.

ARTICLE 6- HOURS OF WORK

6.1 Hours of Work Defined

Hours worked shall be comprised of all the time during which an employee is necessarily required to be on the City's premises on duty or at a prescribed work place. Paid regular hours, vacation, sick, compassion/bereavement, union, compensatory and jury leave are considered hours worked for purposes of calculating overtime.

6.2 Work Schedule

Employees can choose their schedule as covered in Article 3.9 Schedule Seniority.

Shift Schedule

The normal hours for personnel working a shift schedule, will average 56 hours per week. Premium pay will be paid at a rate of 50% of the employee's hourly base rate of pay, for hours worked beyond 204.4 hour/27 day work periods under section (k) of FLSA. A Shift schedule shall be recognized as 48 consecutive hours on duty, 96 consecutive hours off-duty. Shift change will take place at 0800 hours. Premium pay for employees working a Shift Schedule will be averaged over the year and paid in equal monthly amounts each pay period.

The work schedule for employees working as relief personnel shall consist of a Shift Schedule or 40 hour workweek. However, irregular shifts may be scheduled to cover vacation days. The schedule and adjustments are as determined by fire department management.

40 Hour Workweek

For personnel assigned to administrative duties such as training or fire prevention, the work schedule shall consist of a 40 hour work week, unless needed to provide back-up relief coverage.

Work schedules shall be posted for assigned personnel and shall not be changed with less than fourteen (14) days notice except by mutual consent.

Employees shall not work in excess of seventy-two (72) consecutive hours without being followed by a rest period of twenty-four (24) consecutive hours except in the following cases:

- 1. A city-wide declared emergency.
- 2. A late running call at the end of a seventy-two (72) hours shift, calls for service and meetings.
- 3. A state declared conflagration call-out.
- 4. When mutually agreed upon by management and the employee.

Vacation/Sick Leave/Compensation Time Conversion

When an employee transfers from a forty (40) to a shift schedule, the employee's existing vacation, sick leave and compensation time balances shall be multiplied by 1.4 and benefits thereafter will be accrued and used on the shift schedule basis. When an employee transfers from a shift schedule to a forty (40) hour schedule, the employee's existing vacation, sick leave and compensation time balances shall be multiplied by 0.7 and benefits thereafter will be accrued and used on the forty (40) hour basis.

6.3 Modification of Normal Work Schedule

The work schedule for an employee may be modified, if necessary, upon request by the employee and approval by the Fire Chief or their designee, to attend a training course that is approved by fire department management. The employee will receive overtime compensation for overtime according to the FLSA.

6.4 Overtime

Any work performed beyond regular scheduled hours shall be considered overtime. Over time shall be paid at one and one-half (1.5) times the hourly rate of that employee. Overtime shall be computed to the next fifteen (15) minutes.

6.5 Call Out Policy

Full time employees called back to work for reasons other than emergency calls, outside their normal work shift shall receive a minimum of three (3) hours overtime compensation. After the three (3) hour minimum, time will be rounded to the next one (1) hour.

Off-duty, full time employees may respond to emergency calls. The employee will be compensated for actual hours worked. Any resulting overtime for emergency calls employees will receive a minimum of one (1) hour of pay rounded to the next fifteen (15) minutes thereafter.

6.6 Time Sheets

For each pay period employees shall submit a completed time sheet of all hours worked, including overtime, to fire department management by the dates set out in the annual published payroll calendar. Employees that are not on duty the day time sheets are due may submit their timesheets electronically. All employees must sign their timesheets, even if signing electronically.

6.7 Staff Meetings

Regular scheduled monthly staff meeting may be scheduled to discuss operational issues of the Fire Department.

6.8 Sick Leave and Vacation Coverage

For shift coverage as a result of planned or unplanned sick leave and vacations, employees shall be called in the following order.

- a. Relief employees when more than fourteen (14) days notice of sick leave is given.
- Employees working a shift schedule that are on their 96 hours off cycle that is not adjacent to shift needing coverage has first right of refusal. Followed by the other shift employees. or employees working a 40-Hour schedule that are on their 48 hours off cycle. Employees working a 40-Hour schedule that are on their 48 hours off cycle.
- c. Relief employees when less than seven (7) days notice of sick leave or vacation is given.
- d. Forced callback. (this must be coordinated by the Fire Chief or Assistant Chief.)

6.9 Relief Staffing

When the number of bargaining unit line employees are not at levels evenly divisible by three (3) such as (9, 12, 15, 18, 21, etc.), then the City may assign the employees that are above the number divisible by three (3) may be assigned to a forty (40) hour schedule to be used in the relief capacity.

6.10 Forced Callback

Forced callback will be used as a last resort when shifts cannot be filled by other methods described in this Agreement. Forced Callback must be coordinated by the Fire Chief, Assistant Chief or designee, subject to the following:

- a. Employees will be called back for forced overtime based upon a list, using a reverse order of seniority. An employee forced back will then be placed at the bottom of the list. The list will reset at the end of each calendar year. (exceptions for Forced Callback are Employees that have Child Care issues and Pre-planned vacation)
- b. Employees must be qualified for the position they are required to work in a forced callback.
- c. Employees will only work 24 consecutive hours of forced callback unless mutually agreed upon by the employee and the Chief/Assistant Chief or designee.

ARTICLE 7 – DISCIPLINE

7.1 Standard

No employee shall be disciplined or discharged except for just cause. For the purpose of this Article, verbal and written warnings and reprimands in addition to other forms of discipline are considered disciplinary action. The City reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to discipline in the manner and form in which it feels is the most appropriate.

7.2 Probationary Employee

This article shall not apply to any employee on probation as defined in ARTICLE 3 - GENERAL PROVISIONS, 3.2 Probationary Period.

7.3 Imposition

If the City has reason to discipline an employee, he/she shall make a reasonable effort to impose such discipline in a manner that will not unduly embarrass the employee before other employees or the public.

7.4 Due Process

In the event the City believes an employee may be subject to discipline, the following procedural due process shall be followed prior to the issuance of any discipline:

- a. The employee shall be notified within thirty (30) days of the charges/allegations or management's knowledge of the charges/allegations, whichever is later. The employee shall be notified in writing or electronically, of the charges or allegations that may subject him/her to discipline.
- b. The employee shall be notified, in writing or electronically, of the disciplinary sanctions being considered.
- c. The employee will be given an opportunity to refute the charges or allegations either in writing or orally in an informal hearing.
- d. At his/her request, the employee will be entitled to Union and/or legal representation no matter where the employee is in the disciplinary process. The employee will be given a minimum of 24 hours' notice of the scheduling of any meeting that could lead to a disciplinary action.
- e. Union representation will be decided on by the Union. At no time will the City designate any member of the bargaining unit to represent employees.
- f. Any discipline shall occur within sixty (60) days of the employee being notified. The Union and the City shall mutually agree to any extension request. The extension shall not be unreasonably denied.

ARTICLE 8 – GRIEVANCE

8.1 Procedure

For the purpose of this Agreement, a grievance is defined as a dispute about the meaning or interpretation of a particular clause or an alleged violation of the Agreement.

Grievances must be presented within thirty (30) calendar days from the occurrence of the event from which the grievance derived the employee's knowledge thereof or when the employee should have been reasonably aware of the event leading to the grievance. The grievance shall be reduced to writing and signed by the employee or the Union and shall include a statement of the grievance and the facts upon which it is based and the section of the Agreement to which the grievance relates.

Step 1

A copy of the grievance shall be forwarded to the Fire Chief or his/her designee, who shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days of his receipt of the grievance, schedule a meeting with the aggrieved employee and/or the Union representative. This meeting must be scheduled within fifteen (15) days, but must be held within forty-five (45) days from the scheduling of the meeting, unless extended by mutual agreement. The Fire Chief or his/her designee will then render a decision not later than fourteen (14) calendar days

after the meeting. If the grievance is not resolved, the employee shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days of the Fire Chief's or his/her designee's, decision, proceed to Step 2.

Step 2

The grievance, along with all pertinent written information shall be submitted to the City Manager, or his/her designee. The City Manager or his/her designee, shall schedule a meeting within fifteen (15) days with the employee and/or the Union representative. This meeting must be scheduled within fifteen (15) days, but must be held within forty-five (45) days from the scheduling of the meeting, unless extended by mutual agreement. The City Manager or his/her designee will then render a decision no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the meeting. If the City Manager or his/her designee's, decision does not resolve the grievance it shall be processed as outlined in Step 3 within thirty (30) calendar days of the City Manager's or his/her designee's, decision.

Step 3

A list of seven (7) Oregon and Washington arbitrators shall be requested from the Employment Relations Board and the parties, beginning with the Association, shall alternately strike one (1) name until one (1) person is left.

8.2 Arbitration

The arbitrator shall have the authority to issue subpoenas, examine witnesses and documentary evidence, administer oaths and affirmations, and regulate the course of the arbitration hearing. The arbitrator shall have no power to modify, add to or subtract from the terms of this Agreement and shall be confined to the interpretation and enforcement of this Agreement. The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing and shall be submitted to the parties following the close of the hearing. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding on the affected employee(s), the Union and the City.

Either party may request the arbitrator to issue subpoenas but, if issued, the cost of serving the subpoena shall be borne by the party requesting the subpoena. Each party shall be responsible for compensating its own witnesses and representatives during the arbitration hearing. The losing party shall pay the arbitrator's fees and expenses.

8.3 Time Limits

All parties subject to these procedures shall be bound by the time limits contained herein. If either party fails to follow such limits, the following shall result:

- a) If the grievant fails to respond in a timely fashion, the grievance shall be deemed waived.
- b) If the City at any step, fails to respond in a timely fashion, the grievance shall proceed to the next step.
- c) The above-mentioned time limits may be waived or modified if mutually agreed to by both parties in writing.

8.4 Termination of Grievance

A grievance may be terminated at any time upon receipt of a signed statement from the party filing the grievance that the matter has been resolved.

ARTICLE 9 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE

9.1 Without Pay

· .

The City will consider a written application for leave of absence without pay not to exceed three hundred 300 calendar days. The written application must describe the reason for the request and confirm a specified date at which the employee is expected to return to work. The City may terminate or cancel such leave by thirty 30 days written sent via certified mail to the address given by the employee on his/her written application for such leave. The thirty (30) days starts three (3) days after the letter is sent by the City. Such leave shall not be approved for the purpose of accepting employment outside the service of the City, and notice that the employee has accepted permanent employment or entered into full-time business or occupation may be accepted by the City as a resignation.

While on un-paid leave the employee will not accrue benefits including paid leave accumulations. The employee may continue insurance coverage at their own expense.

Any employee who is granted a leave of absence without pay under this section and who for any reason fails to return to work immediately upon the expiration or termination of said leave of absence shall be considered as having resigned his/her position with the City.

9.2 Bereavement Leave

Bereavement Leave is as provided for in the City of Newport Personnel Handbook. However, the paid time available to employees working a shift schedule, will be up to two (2) shifts (48 hours). The two shifts, however, do not need to be contiguous. 40-hour staff will receive up to three (3) working days (24 hours) of paid bereavement leave. If the leave requires out-of-state air travel or more than eight hours drive time, the leave may be extended to five (5) working days.

ARTICLE 10 – SICK LEAVE

10.1 Accrual

40 hour employees will accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours per month; shift scheduled employees will accrue sick leave at three quarters of a shift or eighteen (18) hours per month. Sick leave may be used from the employee's initial date of hire. Sick leave may be accumulated to a total of 960 hours for 40-hour employees and 1500 hours for shift scheduled employees. Sick leave must be taken for the purposes specified in section 10.2 hereof as a condition precedent to any sick leave payment.

10.2 Utilization

An Employee may utilize accrued sick leave in accordance with Oregon Sick Leave law. An Employee needing to miss work due to illness or jury shall notify the on-duty Captain.

10.3 Integration with Worker's Compensation

Any illness or injury for which the employee receives time-loss payments under Workers' Compensation laws may either receive the time-loss payment or may submit the payments to the City and use paid leaves to equate to their normal salary. The City will pick up the first three (3) working days lost by the employee due to an on the job illness or injury without any charge against the employees accumulated sick leave. Employees receiving benefits under this section shall not accrue sick leave hours but will continue to receive benefits as provided elsewhere in this agreement.

ARTICLE 11 – HOLIDAY and VACATION LEAVE

11.1 Holiday Leave

Employees working a 40-hour week shall receive New Years Day, Martin Luther King Jr. Birthday, President's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Day after Thanksgiving, Christmas Day, the second ½ of the day of Christmas Eve and 1 additional floating holiday. If Christmas falls on a Tuesday the preceding day will be a full day off.

11.2 Vacation Leave

Vacation accrual will be calculated on a monthly basis beginning with an employee's date of employment. Vacation accrual amounts in the first month of employment will be prorated based on the number of hours worked and will be rounded to the nearest two (2) hours. New employees will accrue vacation, but are not eligible to use it until after successfully completing the first six (6) months of employment. Upon separation from the City, an employee will be paid for any unused vacation accrual. However, if an employee terminates during the first six (6) months of employment, no vacation benefits will be paid.

(40 Hour Employee)		
Years of Service	Monthly Accrual	Days/Year
0 to 5 years	8.0 hours	12 days
5 to 10 years	10.0 hours	15 days
10 to 15 years	12.0 hours	18 days
15 to 20 years	15.34 hours	23 days
20+ years	16.67 hours	25 days
(Shift Schedule)		
Years of Service	Monthly Accrual	Days/Year
0 to 5 years	14 hours	7 shifts
5 to 10 years	16 hours	8 shifts
10 to 15 years	18 hours	9 shifts
15 to 20 years	22 hours	11 shifts
20+ years	24 hours	12 shifts

The following chart sets forth the amount of vacation accrual for employees:

An eligible employee accrues vacation benefits for any period during actual work and/or while on paid status. This includes an injured worker who is receiving Workers' Compensation timeloss benefits. To be credited vacation benefits during partial months, the employee must work or be on the above stated paid status at least one-half of his/her assigned work hours for the month. Vacation benefits do not accrue when an employee is on unpaid status more than one-half of his/her assigned work hours for the month.

11.3 Maximum Accrual

. . . .

Shift scheduled employees may not accumulate vacation leave in excess of twenty (20) shifts. 40 hour employees may not accumulate vacation leave in excess of forty (40) working days. Although an employee's accrual may exceed this amount during the year, the maximum accrual amount is the amount that can be carried over from one calendar year to the next without written permission of the City Manager or designee. The City, at its discretion, may require an employee to use vacation leave prior to maximum accrual in cases of approved FMLA/OFLA leaves of absence. The City, at its discretion, may choose to pay the employee for vacation time accrued in excess of the maximum accrual rather than allow for the carryover of vacation time over the maximum accrual, but will not pay for more than 40 hours per year for 40 hour employees and 56 hours per year for Shift scheduled employees. Accrual balances will be reported on the employees' monthly pay stub so they can monitor their usage. An employee may continue to accrue time if they exceed the maximum limit because of the cancellation of the vacation by the City, and the employee is unable to reschedule the vacation time prior to the end of the year.

11.4 Scheduling Vacation Time Off

Vacation time shall be scheduled by mutual agreement between the employees and the Chief, or his/her designee, based on the efficient operating needs of the City and availability of relief. The bargaining unit shall be allowed one member of the assigned shift force to be off on vacation or holiday per shift, subject to relief availability, except during periods of employee illness or injury over three (3) working days. Vacation time shall be administered as follows:

- a. Employees should turn in a written vacation request at least two weeks prior to desired time off. Less than two weeks notice will not be cause for vacation denial, however granted time off will be strictly at the discretion of the Fire Chief.
- b. In December each employee will have the opportunity to sign-up for four (4) shifts of planned vacation based on seniority at the start of the vacation calendar. This is to allow members some long term vacation planning.
- c. Once each employee has had the opportunity to sign-up for the four (4) shifts of planned vacation based on their seniority, members will be allowed to request additional vacation on a first come basis at any time during the vacation calendar year.
- d. Request for vacation shall be approved or denied as per this Article in writing within one week of receipt of request. If request is denied, an employee may elect to keep the request open pending relief personnel availability or may seek to trade the shift.
- e. Bargaining unit members will be used to fill open positions.
- f. Vacation time may be cancelled in cases of city-wide emergencies by the City Manager.
- g. Cancellation of vacation time by the employee requires at least seven (7) days notice unless otherwise approved by management.

This article shall not preclude the City from allowing additional employees off on vacation. Bargaining unit members will be afforded the opportunity to schedule-off at least the amount of their yearly vacation accrual each calendar year.

11.5 Comp. Time

Full time paid Fire Department employees working a shift scheduled will receive twelve (12) hours of comp time per month in lieu of holiday leave. The number of hours shall be prorated for those employees working less than a full month. The employee may elect to receive a monthly payment instead of the comp time. The maximum comp time balance allowed will be 240 hours unless approved by the Fire Chief. Comp time above the maximum balance will be paid on the following regular paycheck.

Any payouts of comp time will be at the employees current pay rate. Comp time pay out requests must be submitted with your time sheets.

If the employee changes from a shift scheduled to 40-hour or 40-hour to shift scheduled the comp time will be either converted to the new rate or completely paid out. The option will be at the decision of the employee.

ARTICLE 12 – INSURANCE

12.1 Medical, Dental and Vision Insurance

The City provides CIS plan HDHP-1 with HSA, Delta dental with Ortho or Willamette Dental, VSP Vision plan, Alternative Care Rider and Preventive care benefits insurance benefits. City's contribution will be no less than 90%. The remainder shall be paid by the employee through payroll deduction.

The City will make the following annual contributions on behalf of each employee into the Health Savings Account:

- a. \$1,400 per year for a single family coverage
- b. \$2,700 per year for family coverage

Effective January 1, 2022, the City will provide CIS HDHP-4 with the HSA Delta Dental with Ortho or Willamette Dental, VSP Vision plan, Alternative Care Rider and Preventive care benefits insurance benefits. City's contribution will be no less than 90%. The remainder shall be paid by the employee through payroll deductions.

Effective January 1, 2022 the City will make the following annual contributions on behalf of each employee into the Health Savings Account:

- a. \$1,700 per year for a single family coverage
- b. \$3,400 per year for family coverage

The parties agree to reopen Article 12 with a final agreement being reached by July 1, 2022 on a substitute Health Plan to be effective on January 1, 2023, if accepted in writing by both parties. The City's cost for the new plan shall not exceed the combined HAS/Insurance costs provided by the City for the renewal year of the January 2023 CIS HDHP-4 with HAS Delta Dental or its replacement.

12.2 Life Insurance

. .

The City will contribute towards a policy for \$15,000 of life and A D & D insurance at no cost to the employee This is in addition to the life insurance required for firefighters under ORS 243.005.

12.3 Income Protection

The City agrees to provide a long term disability insurance plan for each employee. Income protection shall be 66% of the disabled employee's salary.

12.4 Health Coverage

Benefits shall be provided to eligible employees, their spouses/domestic partners (same-sex domestic partners only) and their dependents in accordance with current CIS policy.

ARTICLE 13 – COMPENSATION

13.1 Public Employees' Retirement System

The City agrees that all Fire employees will participate in Oregon's Public Employee Retirement System (ORS Chapter 238).

OPSRP PERS employees will have paid time off counted toward their PERS retirement. The City shall "pick up" the six percent (6%) employee contribution required by PERS (Chapter 238/OPSRP Chapter 238A). In the event of the passage on any law, or court order that bars the City form making the employee's contribution to PERS, the City agrees to immediately increase the employee's base pay by six (6) percent.

13.2 Unused Sick Leave

In accordance with law and OPERS rules, the City will extend the use of accumulated unused sick leave to increase retirement benefits. This will allow accrued but unused sick leave to be converted to retirement benefits upon retirement as calculated by PERS.

13.3 Salary Schedule/Wages

(See wages in Appendix B)

Wages will be retro to July 1, 2020 for all bargaining unit employees, whether currently employed or not.

13.4 Movement on the Schedule

New employees shall be hired at the first step, or at the discretion of the City, may be given whole or partial credit for prior experience, and advanced to each successive step upon the completion of twelve (12) months of continuous service in the preceding step. Denial of step increase may be authorized by the Fire Chief, provided that the employee so affected is served with written notification in advance, outlining the reasons for such action and provided with a written review every six (6) months thereafter as long as such denial remains in effect. Such decisions shall not be arbitrary or capricious on the part of the City.

13.5 Incentive Pay

The City will pay incentive pay for the following items:

+2% Advanced EMT

+3% Intermediate EMT

+7% Paramedic

Employees assigned by the Chief or designee to perform the following duties will receive assignment pay:

+7% Training Pay

+4% EMS Coordinator

+3% Technical Rescue Team Pay (Certification and active participation on the team required to receive the pay)

+2% Fire Investigation Team Pay (Active participation on the team required to receive the pay)

+3% Special Team Leader/Coordinator Pay (only those assigned by the Lincoln County Fire Defense Board as the Team Leader or Coordinator and this applies in addition to special team pay) (applies to FIT and Technical Rescue Team Leaders/Coordinators only)

+3% Fire Prevention

Incentive and assignment pays are to be processed and commence in accordance with the City processing and personnel action form (PAF). However, in no case shall combined incentive and assignment pay exceed a total of ten percent (10%) per employee.

Incentive and Assignment Pay:

- a. New incentives and assignment pays to take effect upon ratification.
- b. Increases to incentives or assignment pay will be retro to July 1, 2021

13.6 Travel Pay

Employees shall be paid for all time spent traveling to and from training, classes and educational opportunities that are not held at city facilities.

13.7 Acting in Capacity (AIC) Pay

Personnel assigned to act in a higher capacity will not be required to exercise all of the management functions related to discipline. No assignment will be longer than 120 days unless mutually agreed upon by both parties.

Personnel who are assigned to work in a classification higher than their own shall receive the following:

A Firefighter working as and AIC Engineer shall receive an additional ten percent (10%) of their regular wage.

An Engineer working as AIC Captain shall receive an additional fifteen percent (15%) of their regular wage.

A Firefighter working as and AIC Captain shall receive an additional twenty five percent (25%) of their regular wage.

"Assigned" as used in this Article means filling of a position as required by the Department. Bargaining unit employees will not be used to cover positions outside the bargaining unit.

AIC pay shall be paid when the employee is working in a job classification higher than his or her own for two hours or more, with the exception of when the employee is covering a trade time for an employee in the higher classification.

13.8 State Emergency Mobilization

Personnel deployed on a state emergency mobilization shall receive pay rates for the position that they fulfill during the deployment or their normal pay rate, whichever is higher.

The below chart reflects the equivalent positions for state declared emergency mobilizations.

Firefighter=Firefighter Type 1Engineer=OperatorCaptain=Single Resource BossAdd 5% on top of any AIC already received=Task Force/Strike Team LeaderAdd 5% on top of any AIC already received=Division Supervisor

ARTICLE 14 – SAVINGS CLAUSE

14.1 Savings Clause

Should any Article, section or portion thereof, of this Agreement be held unlawful and unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision of the court shall apply only to the specific Article, section or portion thereof, directly specified in the decision. Upon the issuance of such a decision, the parties agree immediately to negotiate a substitute, if possible, for the invalidated Article, section or portion thereof. This Agreement is subject to amendment, alteration or addition only by subsequent written agreement between and executed by the City and Union where mutually agreeable.

ARTICLE 15 – LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Union and the City agree to continue the joint labor-management committee. This committee shall be composed of a Union representation team and City Representation. The labor-management team shall meet quarterly to discuss and listen to each other on matters related to labor-management concerns unless both parties agree not to meet.

ARTICLE 16 - UNIFORMS

16.1 Uniform Replacement

If the City determines the need for and requires that an employee wear a uniform, such uniform shall be provided be the City at City expense. When an employee believes that a uniform is worn beyond repair, he/she shall bring it to the attention of the City. If the City agrees, the uniform or part thereof shall be replaced at City expense. All uniforms shall at all times remain City property. Nothing in this Article or any part of the Agreement shall be construed to imply that the City does not have the sole authority to determine who is to wear uniforms.

16.2 Protective Equipment

The City solely shall determine the final need for protective equipment. If the City requires the possession and use of protective clothing, such protective equipment and clothing shall be provided by the City at City expense. Such protective equipment shall remain the property of the

City at all times. An employee who discovers defective protective equipment shall bring it to the attention of the City. If an employee notifies the city of defective protective equipment and it is not replace or repaired the employee may not be removed or have their hours decreased due to the lack of protective equipment.

16.3 Uniform Standards

The City will provide bargaining unit employees with all required uniforms, protective clothing and equipment, which meet NFPA standards.

16.4 Uniform Items and Quantity

Class B shirts – 3 Uniform pants – 5 Job Shirt/Sweat Shirt – 4 Belt – 2 Duty/Uniform Boots – 2 Jacket – 1 Complete set of Turnouts – 2 SCBA Mask with eye prescription insert – 1 T-Shirt – 6 Complete set of wildland PPE (helmet, jacket, pants, boots and gloves) – 1

ARTICLE 17 – PHYSICAL FITNESS AND EXERCISE

17.1 Workout/Exercise Time

Employees will be provided with family membership to the city recreation center and pool.

ARTICLE 18 – MISCELLANEOUS

18.1 Performance Appraisal

Employees who have their performance review and evaluation will have the same format used as the rest of the employees. A copy of the appraisal outline will be provided to the Union before it is used. The City will conduct performance reviews annually in March.

18.2 Outside Employment

Outside employment that creates a conflict of interest is prohibited. Employees are prohibited from receiving any income or material gain from individuals or organizations outside the City for materials produced or rendered while performing their jobs for the City.

18.3 Cell Phones

The City will compensate employees for using their personal cellular telephones for work related business while on duty. If a smart phone is required by the City, reimbursement up to fifty (50) dollars a month will be provided for smart phones/data base plan and twenty five (25) dollars a month for dumb phones/cell phones without data plans. This is to help offset the additional costs to their phone bills due to the increased usage. This does not allow the City any access to the employee's personal usage of phone or records of personal phone usage. This includes but is not limited to phone calls, text messages, special applications and online activity such as emails or

any other online related items. Personal communication devices are subject to Oregon public records law (ORS 192.001-990) which requires retention and disclosure of communications relating to department and city business. In the event of a public records request, those records relating to the request will be provided by the employee as required by the Oregon Public Records Law.

Under the Oregon Public records law, if requestor is unsatisfied that all records have been released, the law provides a review process: all records(personal and public) may be reviewed by the Lincoln County District Attorney of Lincoln County circuit court judge and decision rendered regarding the appropriate disclosure.

Reasonable out of pocket costs incurred by the employee will be reimbursed by the employer.

18.4 Leave Donation

• 1

Employees will be allowed to voluntarily donate up to eighty (80) hours of vacation or compensation time leave subject to the following conditions:

Employees on a 40-hour work shift	Employees on a shift schedule
40 hours = 40 hours	40 hours = 56 hours
80 hours = 80 hours	80 hours = 112 hours

18.5 Liability Insurance

The City will maintain liability insurance coverage to protect the city and city employees within the course and scope of the duties as city employees in the amount of \$15MM annual aggregate limit, subject to a \$5MM per occurrence limit for general liability coverage.

18.6 SOPs & SOGs

The City will provide each employee with current version of adopted existing SOP's and SOG's. An electronic copy will also be placed online via the City web site and updated as any changes are made. New SOP's & SOG's drafts will be sent out to employees for review and posted for no less than 30 days before they are to be implemented. SOP's or SOG's that are subject to mandatory bargaining, the Union has the right to bargain the impact of the SOP or SOG. Following the thirty (30) day review period, the Chief will send out a final approved version of the SOP's & SOG's electronically to employees.

18.7 Residency

To provide prompt response to our community in emergency situations all employees must reside within thirty (30) road miles of a Newport Fire Station unless approved by the City Manager or their designee. This article applies to employees hired after 07/01/2017. The City at any time can remove the residency requirement from the contract.

18.8 Misc. Payroll Deductions

The City will process deductions for programs such as AFLACK pre-tax if able to do so pursuant to program rules and if it does not create an unreasonable administrative or cost burden on the City

ARTICLE 19 – TERM OF AGREEMENT

19.1 Term

This agreement shall be effective upon execution, unless specifically provided otherwise, and shall remain in effect through June 30, 2023. This Agreement shall automatically be renewed from year to year thereafter, unless by January 1st of the expiring year of the Agreement either party gives written notice to the other of their intent to negotiate a successor Agreement.

EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement is executed on this the <u>3</u>rdday of May, 2022 by the undersigned:

CITY OF NEWPORT

Spencer Nebel, City Manager

IAFF LOCAL 4619

Andrew Parker, Union President

Appendix A: Seniority Chart

This is to be used for all situations in which seniority may be used to make a decision that affects employees.

Starting with most senior employee:

- 1 Tracy Cole
- 2 Andy Parker
- 3 Chris Rampley
- 4 Doyle Helmricks
- 5 Jonathan Anderson
- 6 Blake Wisham
- 7 Ryan Thomas
- 8 Eric Stafford
- 9 ** New Firefighter **
- 10 ** New Firefighter **
- 11 ** New Firefighter **
- 12 ** New Firefighter **

As employees are added to staff then they will be placed at the bottom of the list in the order they were hired. Employees hired at the same time will be placed on the list as they were ranked in the hiring process. Employees that have a change in status that takes them off the list will be removed and the remaining employees will be moved up in order to replace the employee above them.

Letter of Agreement

By and Between

City of Newport (City)

Newport Professional Firefighters Local 4619 (Union)

The Parties have come to an agreement on a successor collective bargaining agreement (CBA), effective July 1, 2020. However, the insurance company will not allow back date the effective date of the insurance plan changes. The City and Union now agree to the following insurance plan changes, effective June 1, 2022 rather than the originally agreed to date of January 1, 2022:

Effective June 1, 2022, the City will provide CIS HDHP-4 with the HSA Delta Dental with Ortho or Willamette Dental, VSP Vision plan, Alternative Care Rider and Preventive care benefits insurance benefits. City's contribution will be no less than 90%. The remainder shall be paid by the employee through payroll deductions.

Effective June 1, 2022 the City will make the following annual contributions on behalf of each employee into the Health Savings Account:

- a. \$1,700 per year for a single family coverage
- b. \$3,400 per year for family coverage

For the City:

M/ 1 5-3-22

Spencer Nebel

For the Union:

Andy Parker

Rotro HSA TO 1-24-22 Den 1-24-22 Den



Appendix B: Wage Scale

н. В.

(July-1-2020))				
Firefighter:	Step-1	Step-2	Step-3	Step-4	Step-5
Monthly	\$4,750	\$4,916	\$5,088	\$5,266	\$5,451
40 Hr.	\$27.4091	\$28.3669	\$29.3594	\$30.3866	\$31.4541
Shift	\$19.5232	\$20.2055	\$20.9125	\$21.6441	\$22.4044
Shift	$\psi 1 \mathbf{j} \cdot \mathbf{j} \mathbf{L} \mathbf{j} \mathbf{L}$	Ψ20.2033	$\psi 20.7125$	Ψ21.0441	$\Psi 22.1011$
Engineer:	Step-1	Step-2	Step-3	Step-4	Step-5
Monthly	\$5,400	\$5,589	\$5,785	\$5,987	\$6,197
40 Hr.	\$31.1598	\$32.2504	\$33.3814	\$34.5470	\$35.7587
40 HI. Shift	\$22.1948			\$24.6075	
Shift	\$22.1940	\$22.9716	\$23.7772	\$24.0073	\$25.4706
Contains	Stop 1	Stop 2	Stop 2	Stop 1	Stop 5
Captain:	Step-1	Step-2	Step-3	Step-4	Step-5
Monthly	\$6,202	\$6,419	\$6,644 \$28,2281	\$6,876	\$7,117
40 Hr.	\$35.7876	\$37.0398	\$38.3381	\$39.6768	\$41.0675
Shift	\$25.4912	\$26.3831	\$27.3079	\$28.2614	\$29.2520
(July-1-2021)	-	Q4	0	G4	G4 5
Firefighter:	Step-1	Step-2	Step-3	Step-4	Step-5
Monthly	\$5,050	\$5,227	\$5,410	\$5,599	\$5,795
40 Hr.	\$29.1402	\$30.1616	\$31.2175	\$32.3081	\$33.4391
Shift	\$20,7563	\$21.4838	\$22.2359	\$23.0127	\$23.8183
	0				G (F
Engineer:	Step-1	Step-2	Step-3	Step-4	Step-5
Monthly	\$5,612	\$5,808	\$6012	\$6,222	\$6,440
40 Hr.	\$32.3832	\$33.5141	\$34.6913	\$35.9031	\$37.1610
Shift	\$23.0662	\$23.8718	\$24.7102	\$25.5734	\$26.4694
0	0, 1	G(2	G()	C ()	Q4 5
Captain:	Step-1	Step-2	Step-3	Step-4	Step-5
Monthly	\$6,326	\$6,547	\$6,777	\$7,014	\$7,259
40 Hr.	\$36.5032	\$37.7784	\$39.1056	\$40.4732	\$41.8869
Shift	\$26.0008	\$26.9092	\$27.8545	\$28.8286	\$29.8356
(July-1-2022)	-		G()	G4 4	Q , Z
Firefighter:	Step-1	Step-2	Step-3	Step-4	Step-5
Monthly	\$5,201	\$5,538	\$5,572	\$5,767	\$5,969
40 Hr.	\$30.0115	\$31.9561	\$32.1523	\$33.2776	\$34.4432
Shift	\$21.3769	\$22.7620	\$22.9018	\$23.7032	\$24.5335
D	Q. 1		C (<u> </u>	G
Engineer:	Step-1	Step-2	Step-3	Step-4	Step-5
Monthly	\$5,780	\$5,983	\$6,192	\$6,409	\$6,633
40 Hr.	\$33.3526	\$34.5239	\$35.7299	\$36.9821	\$38.2747
Shift	\$23.7567	\$24.5910	\$25.4501	\$26.3420	\$27.2626
05 L D					

25 | Page

Captain:	Step-1	Step-2	Step-3	Step-4	Step-5
Monthly	\$6,516	\$6,712	\$6,946	\$7,155	\$7,369
40 Hr.	\$37.5995	\$38.7305	\$40.0808	\$41.2868	\$42.5216
Shift	\$26.7818	\$27.5873	\$28.5491	\$29.4081	\$30.2877

÷ . 5